
 

Please contact Gill Ferguson on  0151 471 7395 or e-mail 
gill.ferguson@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
The next meeting of the Committee is on Thursday, 14 October 2010 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
 

PART 1 
 
 

Item Page No 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda no later than when that item 
is reached and, with personal and prejudicial interests (subject 
to certain exceptions in the Code of Conduct for Members), to 
leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting on the item. 
 
 
 

 
 

3. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY 
 

 

 (A) DEFRA CONSULTATION ON DISTRIBUTING 
FUNDING FOR LOCAL FLOOD RISK 
MANAGEMENT   

 

1 - 28 

Executive Board Sub Committee 
 
Thursday, 23 September 2010 10.00 a.m. 
Marketing Suite, Municipal Building 

Public Document Pack



 
 
  
Item Page No 
  

 

4. HEALTH AND ADULTS PORTFOLIO 
 

 

 (A) ADDITIONAL IDVA CAPACITY FOR HALTON 
DOMESTIC ABUSE SERVICE   

 

29 - 33 

5. RESOURCES PORTFOLIO 
 

 

 (A) ICT HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 
AND DEVELOPMENT CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
2011/2011   

 

34 - 43 

 
 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



REPORT TO: Executive Board Sub Committee 

DATE: 23 September 2010 

 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Environment & Economy 
 
SUBJECT: Defra Consultation on Distributing Funding for 

Local Flood Risk Management  
 
WARDS: Boroughwide 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

Defra has consulted Lead Local Flood Authorities (LLFAs) (including 
Halton) on how funding for the new duties under the Flood and Water 
Management Act (2010) should be distributed. This report sets out the 
options described in Defra’s consultation paper and details Halton’s 
response. It should be noted that the actual level of funding is subject to 
the outcome of the spending review and other decisions on local 
government finances. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION:  
 

That the response, as set out in the Pro Forma attached as Appendix 
3, which states Halton’s preference for a ‘flat rate of funding common 
to all LLFAs plus an additional amount based on flood risk (Option 
2a), be noted and endorsed. 

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Introduction 
 
3.1.1 At its meeting on 16th June, the Urban Renewal Policy and Performance 

Board considered a report on the implications of the Flood and Water 
Management Act (2010) for Halton and noted the new duties imposed on 
the Council as a Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA). The Board resolved 
to request the Executive Board to consider the financial and resource 
implications of the Act, including Defra’s proposal to provide Area Based 
Grant to assist with the carrying out of its new duties.  A copy of that report 
is attached as Appendix 1. 

 
3.1.2 The Government recognises that becoming a LLFA represents a new 

pressure and, as part of the Spending Review, is considering how to 
distribute funding to local government to support it in delivering its new 
roles and responsibilities once the Act commences. Defra has written to all 
Lead Local Flood Authorities requesting their views on options for the 
distribution of funding – see questions in paragraph 3.8.  A response to 

Agenda Item 3aPage 1



these questions (together with additional commentary where necessary) 
has been prepared by the Strategic Director – Environment and Economy 
in consultation with the Executive Board Member for Transportation and 
has been sent to Defra as Halton’s response to the consultation to meet 
Defra’s required return date of 17th September. 

 
3.2  Funding Streams 
 
3.2.1 Local authorities currently receive funding for flood and coastal erosion 

risk management through Formula Grant, and through capital Grants from 
the Environment Agency (e.g. for the Surface Water Management Plan for 
Widnes). The Department for Communities and Local Government 
(DCLG) is currently consulting formally on changes to the Formula Grant. 
In terms of Flood and Coastal Erosion, the proposal is to move towards 
the use of geographical information on flood risk, utilising the Environment 
Agency’s flood risk maps, as the evidence base for funding, instead of 
using historical expenditure as an indicator of future need.  This should 
result in a more accurate distribution of funding according to relative need.  
However, it should be noted that grant will be reduced due to the transfer 
of responsibility for private sewers and drains to the Water Companies, 
ending Local Authorities’ involvement in these matters. 

 
3.2.2 Under the previous Government administration, Defra stated that it is fully 

committed to fully funding the net new burdens imposed on LLFAs, and to 
keeping costs under review.  It is now proposing to use Area Based Grant 
rather than Formula Grant to fund the new duties of LLFAs.  This would be 
allocated to each LLFA as additional revenue funding to supplement 
existing grant.  Local authorities will be able to see how much it has been 
allocated according to transparent ‘policy criteria’ that are evidence based, 
as set out in Defra’s consultation document, and can resource and 
prioritise according to local need.  The policy criteria are based on an 
assessment of the number of properties that are believed to be at risk of 
flooding from surface water, rivers and the sea.   

 
3.2.3 The proposed funding for the new duties is separate to the recently 

announced £2m of additional funding to help local authorities deal with 
Preliminary Flood Risk Assessments, which are a requirement of the 
Flood Risk Regulations 2009.  LLFA’s are expected to receive between 
£10,000 to £30,000 for this purpose, depending on the level of flood risk in 
their area.  The planned funding does not affect the £100,000 grant for the 
development of a Surface Water Management Plan for Widnes, which was 
awarded to Halton in March this year.   

 
3.2.4 The majority of new financial costs for a LLFA relate to the leadership role 

and to Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS) adoption and maintenance.  
The funding of SuDS responsibilities has not been included in these 
proposals, as separate work is underway on this. 

 

Page 2



The funding proposals now under consideration relate to the new burdens 
and leadership role of LLFAs under the Flood and Water Management Act 
(FWMA) which include: 
 

• Developing local flood risk management strategies; 

• Undertaking Surface Water Management Plans and delivering some 
early or priority actions they contain; 

• Co-ordinating partnership activity; 

• Mapping and registering significant assets and features; 

• Designating third party assets and features; 

• Running oversight and scrutiny committees; 

• Administering consents in relation to ordinary watercourses. 
 
3.2.5 The consultation paper illustrates how £36 million a year could be  

distributed to LLFAs using Area Based Grant.  This is Defra’s assessment 
of the cost of new burdens and is based on the upper-end of cost 
estimates and conservative saving assumptions.  However, the actual 
level of funding is subject to the outcome of the spending review and other 
decisions on local government finances.  Also, funding illustrations have 
been prepared to show the effect of a phased implementation of the Act 
over three years.  

 
3.3 Defra’s Methodology to Determine Distribution of Funding 
 
3.3.1 Defra propose that an assessment of the number of properties at risk of 

flooding is a suitable indicator for measuring the funding need of each 
LLFA.  Data is currently available in the form of geographical information 
to enable the number of properties at risk to be determined, nationally and 
within each LLFA area.  This is the Evidence Base, and it is used to 
measure the relative share of funding.  Using existing Surface Water 
Vulnerability Maps, the Environment Agency’s Flood Maps and the 
National Property Database, Defra has considered the number of 
properties at risk of river, sea and surface water flooding.  They have then 
‘weighted’ the results according to degree or likelihood of flooding, and 
have applied a ratio according to the anticipated split of new duties 
attributable to each type of flooding.  This enables calculations to be made 
of each authority’s relative need in terms of properties affected, expressed 
as a percentage of the national total, which can be used to determine its 
share of the available funding. 

 
3.3.2  Four alternative approaches have been investigated by Defra, but were 

not progressed as they produced various flaws, inaccuracies or unfairness 
in proposed distribution. 

 
3.4 Defra’s Results 
 
3.4.1 Defra’s results are set out in more detail in Appendix 2 but it is seeking 

views on three possible options. 

Page 3



 
3.4.2 Option 1 – Funding distributed based purely on the geographical 

assessment of flood risk.  A percentage figure for each LLFA is 
determined that represents its share of property at risk nationally and 
therefore its share of funding.  Assuming that £36 million per annum is 
available for Area Based Grant, a maximum grant allocation of £1,160,800 
would be awarded (representing a 3.22% share of property at risk in 
Lincolnshire) with a minimum of £19,900 (representing a 0.3% share of 
property at risk in Rutland). If funding were to be distributed in this way, 
Halton would be allocated £49,100 (representing a 0.7% share of 
properties and on being 140th in the list of LLFAs).  

 
3.4.3 The case for a ‘funding floor’ to set a minimum level of grant 
   
3.4.4  Defra acknowledge that all LLFAs will be expected to undertake certain  

actions to meet the requirements of the Act.  These may not correspond 
perfectly to the level of risk although more work would be required where 
risk is higher than in areas where it is less.  This suggests that a funding 
‘floor’ may need to be set. Defra consider that it is reasonable to assume 
that one or two people will be needed in addition to existing teams to carry 
out the new functions under the Act, even where risk is relatively low. Its 
paper presents the options of setting a funding floor at £110,000 
(equivalent to 1.5 Chartered Engineer FTEs or 2 Technician FTEs). 

 
3.4.5 If a funding floor is introduced as suggested, of the assumed £36 million, 

£16.39 million would be evenly distributed across all 149 LLFAs.  Defra 
present two further options for the distribution of the remainder of the 
funding as described below.  

 
3.5 Option 2a – ‘Top-up Floor’ 
 
3.5.1 Here, after each authority is provided with the flat rate of funding as a 

floor, the remaining funding is distributed (in addition to the floor already 
provided) on the basis of the assessment of geographical information on 
flood risk.  This option continues to provide each LLFA with a level of 
funding according to the level of risk. Under this option the Grant 
allocations range from £742,300 to £120,900.  Halton’s maximum grant 
would be £136,700. 

 
3.6 Option 2b – ‘Adjusted Floor’ 
 
3.6.1 This option distributes the funding according to flood risk – as with option  

1, but for those 55 authorities (including Halton) that fall below the 
suggested ‘floor’ of £110,000, the grant is adjusted to that minimum level.  
The balance of funding (£29.95m) is distributed to the remaining 
authorities giving a maximum grant of £1,060,000.  In this case Halton 
would receive only the funding floor amount (£110,000) with no ‘top-up’ 
based on risk to properties. 

Page 4



 
3.7 As stated in paragraph 3.2.5 funding illustrations have been provided by 

Defra for all three options based upon a phased implementation of the Act 
over three years – 60% in year 1 (£26.1m), 80% in year 2  (£28.8m) and 
100% in year 3 and thereon (£36m).   

 
 Under these three scenarios Halton would receive the following: 
 

  
 
From the above, it can be seen that Option 2a is the most financially 
favourable to Halton. It should, therefore, permit greater resources to be 
deployed to carry out the new duties and hence has been submitted as 
the preferred option to Defra.  If adopted, this option could result in less 
funds being available for some authorities deemed to be at greater risk of 
flooding, but it must be remembered these funds are to help carry out the 
duties, mainly through the deployment of staff and consultancies, and not 
to provide flood defence measures.  However, as the new burdens and 
consequent pressures are not yet fully understood it is felt prudent to 
attempt to maximize new funding in the face of potentially significant cuts 
elsewhere. 

 
3.8 Halton’s Response and Commentary 
 
3.8.1 In its consultation, Defra invited LLFA’s to respond to nine questions.  

Halton's response is attached on the Pro Forma at Appendix 3 and, where 
appropriate, additional commentary is included to assist Members’ 
understanding of the issue (but note these commentaries were not 
submitted as part of the response).  It is now recommended that Members 
note and endorse this response. 
 
The questions, together with a brief summary of the response, are: 
 

1. Do you have a preference on how funding for LLFAs is provided? 
Prefer Area Based Grant. 

2. Do you agree that Government distribute funding for LLFAs on the 
basis of geographical data such as flood maps and surface water 
vulnerability maps?  
Agree. 

Option 1 
(£000s) 

2a 
(£000s) 

2b 
(£000s) 

Year 1 
 

29.5 117.1 110.0 

Year 2 
 

38.7 126.9 110.0 

Year 3 
 

49.1 136.7 110.0 

Page 5



3. Do you agree that a minimum amount of funding should be set (as 
a floor) that any one authority will receive?  
Strongly agree. 

4. If you agreed at question 2, what would you consider should be the 
minimum amount of funding an authority receives?  
Value of the floor indicated in the paper i.e. £110,000. 

5. If you answered question 3 and 4, please explain any evidence you 
may have to support your answer.  
A number of staff are already deployed on existing flood risk and 
water management duties. Additional duties benefit from additional 
resources. 

6. Do you agree that the assumptions about staff costs are correct? 
Agree. 

7. Which of the options presented in the paper do you prefer?  
Option 2a. 

8. Do you agree with the weightings suggested in the paper?  
Neutral. 

9. Are there any other comments or suggestions that you would like to 
make?  
It is essential to protect the proposed funding package through the 
Spending Review. 

    
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
  
4.1 Defra’s paper defines the policy criteria that it proposes to use in 

determining the distribution of funding via Area based Grant to the lead 
Local Flood Authorities, i.e. what is it that attracts the funding?  Essentially 
this is the number of properties at risk of flooding, either from surface water 
or from rivers and the sea.  Defra’s funding proposals are in keeping with 
the previous Government’s commitment to fund new burdens under the Act 
in full and to keep costs under review.  This funding would underpin the 
delivery of actions under the Act, in line with national, regional and local 
policies and strategies for flood risk management.  These were detailed in 
the report to UR PPB, see Appendix 1. 

 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Resource Implications 
 

The report details an illustrative distribution of funding for each of the 
Options described in Defra’s paper.  It should be noted that final distribution 
is dependant upon the outcome of the Spending Review, related reviews 
(such as of Local Government Finance), improvements to the evidence 
base over time and decisions on the commencement of the Flood and 
Water Management Act.  The indicative level of funding for Halton lies 
between £49,100 and £136,700 depending upon the distribution option 
finally selected and any phased implementation.  However, these should not 
at this stage be considered indicative of the final funding settlement and 

Page 6



they could change. The suggested introduction of a ‘funding floor’ is 
designed to enable the appointment of additional staff resources - 1½ to 2 
FTEs to undertake the new roles and responsibilities under the Act. 

 
5.2 Sustainability  

Defra’s whole approach to flood and coastal erosion risk management is 
based upon sustainable strategies.  This is delivered in partnership with the 
Environment Agency, through the strategic, sustainable, flood risk 
management approaches including Catchment Flood Management Plans 
and the Shoreline Management Plans and Surface Water Management.  
The funding is intended to enable LLFAs to fulfill the leadership role under 
the FWMA, as described in paragraph 3.2. 
 

5.3 Legal Implications 
 

The Act places many new statutory duties on Halton as a LLFA.  The 
purpose of the proposed funding is to enable authorities to deliver those 
duties, responsibilities and functions once the Act commences.  

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Halton’s Urban Renewal 

The management of flood risk will have a beneficial effect on both the 
sustainability of existing development and the planning and delivery of new 
developments in Halton, particularly those areas with potential to suffer 
flooding.  These include parts of southern Widnes where the expansion of 
industrial and commercial development continues apace, and areas of 
housing and commercial growth in east Runcorn.  This funding would 
enable the development of plans and strategies designed to manage flood 
risk and coastal erosion in Halton and fulfil the leadership role under the Act. 

 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 There are no risks directly related to this report.  The options for the 

distribution of funding by Defra for Halton’s leadership role as LLFA result in 
a range of projected grant allocations as indicated in paragraphs 3.7 and 
5.1.   Depending on what level of grant is awarded, and how it is used to 
meet the requirements of flood risk management, there may be implications 
for the Council with regard to the extent it is able to deliver the role and 
functions under the Act and therefore meets its duties and obligations in 
terms of performance. 

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 There are no Equality and Diversity Issues associated with the report. 

 
 

Page 7



9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Document 
 
Letter from Defra 
Policy Advisor – Flood 
Management 
 
Defra Paper – Distributing 
Funding to Lead Local 
Authorities for Local Flood 
Risk Management. 
 

Including: 
 
Annex A summary of 
Evidence base 
 
Annex B Summary of 
Results for each funding 
Option. 
 

Place of Inspection 
 
Highways Transportation 
and Logistics Department, 
Rutland House, Runcorn 
 
Ditto 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ditto 
 
 
Ditto 

Contact Officer 
 
D. Cunliffe 
 
 
 
D.Cunliffe 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D.Cunliffe 
 
 
D.Cunliffe 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

      Appendix 1 

REPORT TO: Environment and Urban Renewal Policy and 
Performance Board 

DATE: 16 June 2010 

 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Environment & Economy 
 
SUBJECT: Flood Risk Management 
 
WARDS: Boroughwide 
 
1.1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
To brief Members on the implications of the Flood and Water Management Act 
(2010) for Halton and provide information on the status of the various plans and 
funding arrangements which support its introduction. 
  
2.0 RECOMMENDATION:  

 

 1) That the Board note the new duties imposed on the Council as a 
Lead Local Flood Authority and the financial and resource 
implications associated with them; and  

 

2) That the Executive Board be requested to consider the financial 
and resource implications of the Flood and Water Management Act for 
Halton, including Defra’s proposal to provide Area Based Grant to 
assist with the carrying out of its new duties. 
 

4.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The Flood and Water Management Act 2010 
 
This new Act, which is designed to provide more comprehensive management of 
flood risk for people, homes and businesses, received Royal Assent on 8th April 
2010.  The Act has very significant implications for Lead Local Authorities: 

• A new statutory responsibility for managing flood risk  

Whilst the Environment Agency will have an overview of all flood and coastal 
erosion risk management, Unitary and County Councils will become Lead Local 
Flood Authorities (LLFAs) responsible for managing local flood risk, in 
accordance with the national strategy.  They will bring together relevant bodies, 
which will have a duty to co-operate, to develop Local Flood Risk Management 

Page 9



Strategies for surface water run-off, groundwater and non-main rivers.  The Act 
places new duties on LLFAs, to investigate flooding incidents in their area and to 
maintain a register of structures or features which effect flood risk.  The Act 
provides powers to carry out works for the management of surface water run-off 
and groundwater, and also environmental powers for works that would deliver 
leisure, habitat and other environmental benefits.   

• Responsibility for approving and maintaining sustainable drainage 

The automatic right for developers to connect to public sewers will be removed. 
Drainage systems for all new developments and redevelopments will need to 
incorporate sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) and be in line with new 
National Standards to help manage and reduce the flow of surface water into the 
sewerage system.  County and Unitary Local Authorities will be SuDS Approving 
Bodies (SAB), responsible for approving SuDS before the developer can 
commence construction and for subsequent adoption and maintenance of the 
systems, which will be recorded on the local register of drainage structures. 

Although part of planning guidance, the uptake of SuDS nationally has been slow 
for various legal and technical reasons.  However, the provisions of the Bill 
together with the removal of the automatic right to connect to sewers will ensure 
that sustainable drainage design is an imperative feature of any new 
development. 

• Reservoir safety  

A new, improved, risk-based regime for reservoir safety will be introduced to 
protect the safety of the public.  It will introduce regulation for some potentially 
higher risk reservoirs, currently outside of the system, and reduce the burden on 
regulated reservoirs where people are not at risk.   

Halton currently has two reservoirs, surface water balancing ponds at Wharford 
Farm and Oxmoor in east Runcorn.  It is anticipated that both are likely to be 
classified as ‘low risk’ reservoirs. 

• Other implications for Statutory Water and Sewerage Companies 

All sewers will be built to agreed standards in future so that they are adopted and 
maintained by the relevant sewerage company; 

There will be an introduction of measures to control the use of water during 
periods of water shortage; 

There will be a development of concessionary schemes and social tariffs for 
water and sewerage; 

There will be proposals to reduce ‘bad debt’ including the provision of “named 
customer” to clarify who is responsible for paying the water bill. 

Page 10



 

3.2 The Flood Risk Regulations 2009 

The Flood Risk Regulations were introduced on 10 December 2009 to implement 
the EU Floods Directive.  It was previously intended to transpose the Directive 
through the Flood and Water Management Act, however, the Regulations are 
consistent with the Act’s aims and they provide a more timely introduction of the 
intended provisions.  In the future, it is intended to consolidate the Regulations 
and the Act to produce a single, coherent set of provisions for the assessment 
and management of flood risk.   

The Regulations place duties on Lead Local Flood Authorities as follows: 

• Duty to prepare preliminary assessment reports in relation to flooding in its 
area.  (a PFRA) This is a report about past floods and the possible harmful 

consequences of future floods, to identify areas of potential significant risk 

• Duty to identify flood risk areas and determine whether, in its opinion, 

there is a significant flood risk in its area, and identify the part of the area 

affected by the risk ; 

• Duty to prepare flood hazard maps and flood risk maps in relation to each 

relevant flood risk area; 

• Duty to prepare Flood Risk Management Plans in relation to each relevant 
flood risk area. 

Strict timescales for delivery of the reports, plans and maps have been laid down 
by Defra / EA, which will have significant resource implications.  There has 
already been a significant amount of work undertaken to date on the 
development of various plans that will assist and inform the delivery of the duties 
as described below. 

3.3 Catchment Flood Management Plan 
 
Catchment Flood Management Plans (CFMPs) give an overview of the flood risk 
across each river catchment and estuary and recommend ways of managing 
those risks now and over the next 50-100 years.  CFMPs consider all types of 
inland flooding, from rivers, ground water, surface water and tidal flooding, taking 
into account the likely impacts of climate change, the effects of how we use and 
manage the land, and how areas could be developed  to meet our present day 
needs, without compromising future needs.  CFMPs identify flood risk 
management policies, to assist all key decision makers in the catchment and will 
help to target limited resources where the risks are greatest.   
 
There are two CFMPs covering Halton: 

• The Mersey Estuary Catchment Flood Management Plan – covering north 
of the River Mersey and  

Page 11



• The Weaver Gowy Catchment Flood Management Plan, covering the 
south side of the Mersey estuary. 

 
Both plans were prepared in partnership with regional and local planning 
authorities, community and environmental groups and other stakeholders and 
they were agreed by the North West Regional Flood Defence Committee in April 
2009. 
 
The Mersey Estuary CFMP 
There are ten Sub-Areas within the Mersey Estuary CFMP.  Sub Area 6 - Widnes 
and Penketh is defined as an area of “low flood risk” where the policy is to “take 
action to store water or manage run-off in locations that provide overall flood risk 
reduction or environmental benefits”.  Current flood risk is managed through 
routine maintenance of the river channels and raised defences. Hale Bank is a 
tidal flood warning area. 

 

The plan includes specific actions for partners including: 

• The development of a Multi Agency Flood Plan for Widnes to ensure safe 
access and evacuation can be provided during flood events; 

• Encouraging the use of appropriately designed Sustainable Urban 
Drainage Systems (SUDS) to control run-off at source; 

• The production of a hydraulic model for Stewards Brook to provide key 
Environment Agency data and deliver accurate flood outlines for updating 
the Flood Map; 

• Implementation of United Utilities recent proposals for remedial works to 
reduce sewer flooding issues in this sub-area. 

 
The Weaver Gowy CFMP 
There are seven sub-areas within the Weaver Gowy CFMP.  Sub Area 2 – 
Frodsham and Runcorn, is an area where the residential communities of 
Sandymoor, Runcorn are infrequently exposed to fluvial flooding from Keckwick 
Brook, This is expected to increase as climate change occurs, resulting in higher 
flood damage and hazards to people. There are around 25 to 50 properties in 
East Runcorn that have a 1% chance of flooding in any one year from Keckwick 
Brook.  The policy for the area is that there “may be a need to take further 
actions to keep pace with climate change”  The plan includes specific actions for 
partners including: 

• In the short term, complete the proposed new flood defence scheme for 
the Keckwick Brook area. (Note: This is an Environment Agency scheme 
as Keckwick Brook is a main river) 

Delivery against the actions contained in the CFMPs is measured under National 
Performance Indicator NI189.  Actions include: 

o Encouraging the use of flood resilience and flood-proofing to 
properties; 

o Investigation of the resilience to flooding of key infrastructure; 
o Production of SWMPs; 
o Plan and guide development away from the floodplain; 

Page 12



Halton has made satisfactory progress in meeting its actions required for 2009/10 
under the Action Plan. 
 
3.4 Shoreline Management Plan 
 
A Shoreline Management Plan is a non-statutory, high level policy document 
used for coastal flood and erosion risk management planning which will be used 
to help the Environment Agency and Local Authorities plan work to manage 
coastal risks.  It is a large-scale assessment of the risks associated with coastal 
processes, such as tidal patterns, and it helps to reduce risks to people and the 
environment.  SMPs are intended to inform wider strategic planning. 

The second generation of Shoreline Management Plans (SMP2s) are currently in 
production, covering the entire coastline in England and Wales.  Although not a 
‘Coastal’ authority, Halton is included in the North West England and North 
Wales Coastal Group, which covers the section of coastline from Great Ormes 
Head to Scotland and includes the Clwyd, Dee and Mersey Estuaries. 

The SMP identifies four main policy approaches for the short term (0 to 20 years) 
medium term (20 to 50 years) and long term (50 to 100 years): 

• Hold the line:  Keeping the shoreline in the same place 

• Advance the line: Creating more land by moving coastal defences into 
the sea 

• Managed realignment: Letting the shoreline move forward or backwards 
in a controlled way 

• No active intervention: Letting nature take its course on the shoreline 

The long term plan for the inner Mersey estuary is to maintain the status quo, 
continuing to provide the same extent of protection currently afforded to property 
and infrastructure, while allowing natural evolution of the shoreline where there 
are currently no defences present 

Halton’s coastline is covered by 5 sections within Sub Cell 11(a), two on the 
south side and three on the north side of the estuary.  To the west of Pickerings 
Pasture (Hale Point) the policy is one of ‘no active intervention’.  The commercial 
/ industrial shoreline frontages to the west of Runcorn Widnes Bridge are 
designated as ‘Hold the Line’.  East of the Bridge, the policy is to ‘Hold the Line’ 
in the short term but a policy of ‘Managed Realignment’ will be considered in 
these areas, following further studies. 

 
3.5 Surface Water Management Plan 
 
Surface water flooding can occur from a variety of sources (such as sewers, 
drains, groundwater, and runoff from land, small water courses and ditches) 
when high rainfall events exceed the drainage capacity in an area. This can lead 
to serious flooding of property and possessions where surface water flows and 
collects. A Surface Water Management Plan (SWMP) outlines the preferred 
surface water management strategy for a particular area, describing the causes 

Page 13



and effects of surface water flooding and the most cost effective way of 
managing surface water flood risk for the long term.  As LLFA, Halton has the 
leadership role in the development of a SWMP in consultation with key local 
partners.  The plan is intended to establish a long-term action plan to manage 
surface water in an area and should influence future capital investment, drainage 
maintenance, land-use & emergency planning, and future developments. 
 
In August last year, as part of the Government's response to the Pitt Review, 
£9.7 million was awarded to 77 local authorities to develop SWMPs in the areas 
considered to be at highest risk of surface water flooding. In March, a further £5.3 
million was award to 49 local authorities to help them tackle surface water 
flooding. Halton has been granted £100,000 for the development of a SWMP for 
Widnes, and work is now underway to establish partnerships and identify the 
scope of the SWMP study.  
 
3.6 Transfer of Responsibility for Private Sewers 

From 2011 all private sewers that drain to public sewers will become the 
responsibility of the statutory water and sewerage companies.  It has been 
estimated that up to 50 per cent of properties in England and Wales are 
connected to private sewers, which are generally collectively owned and 
maintained by the owners of the premises they serve (though often extending 
beyond the property boundary into the public highway).  

There are no comprehensive records of where private sewers are located or 
what condition they are in.  Unless a problem occurs householders are often 
unaware that they are responsible for the maintenance and repair of their private 
sewer, sometimes jointly with others.  Defra estimate that nationally, there will be 
a £50m saving to Local Authorities as a result of the transfer through reduced 
management and maintenance costs.  Very often, Local Authorities need to get 
involved in resolving problems and issues relating to private sewers, exercising 
their powers under the Public Health Act.  In addition, Local Authorities may 
themselves be the owners of considerable lengths of private sewers.   

However, the Local Government Association disputes the Government’s 
estimates and say that the saving is likely to be much lower.  The costs of 
transfer will be met by an increase in the sewerage element of bills to 
householders, currently estimated to be around  7.5 pence to 23 pence a week.  

3.7 Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems 

Traditional drainage is designed to move rainwater as run-off from hard paving 
and roofing to a discharge point, either a watercourse or soakaway, as rapidly as 
possible.  However, this approach can cause sudden rises in water levels and 
flow rates in watercourses and increase the risk of flooding downstream.  By 
diverting rainfall to piped systems, water is stopped from soaking into the ground, 
depleting ground water and reducing flows in watercourses in dry weather.  The 
Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS) approach to drainage is intended to 

Page 14



reduce flood risk and restore natural flows to groundwater and watercourses 
which will in turn reduce pollution, improve water resources and enhance the 
amenity of developed areas.   

SuDS fall into three broad groups which provide a number of options for draining 
an area.  

• Reducing the quantity of runoff from the site through source control 
techniques such as rainwater recycling or the use of permeable 
pavements; 

• Slowing the velocity of runoff to allow permeation and infiltration through 
filter drains and swales (wide / shallow ditches); 

• Providing passive treatment to collected surface water before discharge, 
utilising retention ponds and basins, large diameter pipes or storage tanks. 

 
As described above, the Flood and Water Management Act establishes SuDs 
Approval Bodies (SAB) with the responsibility for approval, adoption and future 
maintenance of systems.  Sustainable drainage will have to comply with new 
national standards and the right to connect to a public sewer will be conditional 
on the drainage system being approved by the SAB.  There are a number of 
technical factors, which may prove challenging in the design and implementation 
of SuDS schemes in Halton.  Impermeable clay ground conditions in Widnes, the 
presence of a high water table in East Runcorn and areas of contaminated land 
will in certain circumstances, constrain options. It will be important for developers 
to determine their drainage strategy and design at an early stage as SuDS 
techniques can take up a significant amount of space within a development, 
which may affect the developable area, land ownership, and landscape design 
etc.  It should be noted that in the context of the Bill, development works can 
include the construction of impermeable patios and driveways. 
 
Halton will have SAB responsibilities and the assessment & approval process of 
developer’s drainage proposals and this itself have a significant resource 
requirement.   However, following adoption, it is the duty for future maintenance 
of SuDS that will have the greatest impact on resources and funding.  This is 
described in paragraph 3.10 below. 
 
3.8 Reservoirs 
 
The provisions of the Flood and Water Management Act make changes to the 
Reservoirs Act 1975.  A new risk-based regime for reservoir safety will reduce 
the burden on regulated reservoirs where people are not at risk, but will introduce 
regulation for some potentially high risk reservoirs currently outside the current 
system 
 

• The Environment Agency will maintain a register of all reservoirs above 
10,000 cubic metres capacity (previously this was 25,000 cu.m) held 
above the natural level of any part of the surrounding land 

Page 15



• The Environment Agency will classify each relevant reservoir according to 
whether, in the event of an uncontrolled release of water from the 
reservoir, they pose a threat to human life  

• The duties of reservoir managers ‘panel engineers’ will be specified, 
based on the level of risk. 

 
Although the thresholds for registering reservoirs would be reduced to 10,000 
cubic metres, “only those that pose a risk to life would be required to have the 
same level of supervision and periodic inspections by qualified civil engineers as 
at present” and reservoirs judged to be ‘low risk’ could be exempted from certain 
inspections and procedures.  
 
Halton currently has two reservoirs that come within the criteria described in the 
Act.  Both are balancing ponds (Wharford Farm Basin and Oxmoor Basin), 
constructed as part of the flood attenuation system for Keckwick Brook, in 
connection with development at Sandymoor and Manor Park.  As part of the risk 
assessment process, Defra have completed a reservoir inundation mapping 
exercise to rank reservoirs in order of priority for the purpose of informing 
emergency planning processes. Defra have confirmed that none of the reservoirs 
located in Halton have been assessed as high priority. 
 
3.9 Funding and Grants 
 
Prior to the recent elections, Defra have stated that they are fully committed to 
fully funding the net new burdens imposed on LLFAs. The majority of new 
financial costs relate to the leadership role and to SuDS adoption and 
maintenance.  It is hoped that this position at least will be maintained, if not 
improved upon, but the Government’s planned cuts in public expenditure may 
have an impact in this regard and further developments are awaited. 
 
In response to consultation on the draft Bill, the LGA, on behalf of members, 
expressed serious concerns over the cost estimates of the Bill’s proposals and 
funding assumptions used in Defra’s impact assessment.  Given the importance 
of the flood leadership role and local authorities concerns about funding,  Defra 
have agreed that, together with the LGA, they will jointly monitor the situation and 
will keep costs and assumptions under review, addressing any shortfalls that 
arise.   
 
Defra’s assessment of the cost of new burdens is based on upper-end of cost 
estimates and conservative saving assumptions in order to provide added 
confidence.  Defra have stated that they will provide: 
 

• An extra £36m/yr for lead local flood authorities, distributed via Area-
Based Grants to LLFAs, which will allow local authority-led activity to triple 
to £54m per year.  The allocation of funding will be determined by Defra in 
consultation with CLG. 

 

Page 16



• The ongoing costs of maintaining adopted SuDS will be funded in full. 
Initially costs of maintenance will be low, but as more systems are built 
and adopted the costs will increase. Funding options are being reviewed 
and the long-term position will be made clear before commencement to 
ensure certainty that there will be no funding shortfall. 

 

• An extra £2.7m per year, will be raised through the existing ‘local levy’ (an 
increase of 10%) by Regional Flood & Coastal Committees for local 
coastal erosion schemes, plus up to £3m per year for reservoir emergency 
plans. 

 

• An £8m contingency in the first year of implementation. 
 

As described in paragraph 3.6 Defra have estimated that the transfer of private 
sewerage to statutory water companies would produce savings to Local 
Authorities estimated at £50m, and this ‘saving’ will fund the majority of costs in 
undertaking new duties. Whilst Defra maintain that this is a conservative 
estimate, the LGA dispute this figure and say that dealing with private sewerage 
problems and issues is much less.  This estimated ‘saving’ would be reflected in 
future Local Authority budgets and accounting for the transfer is expected to 
affect funding provision by less than 1%. 
 
As indicated in paragraph 3.5, in March Halton was awarded £100,000 by Defra 
under their ‘Early Action’ programme to tackle surface water flood risk, for the 
development of a SWMP.  
   
The Environment Agency has designed a scheme to provide flood protection to 
residential properties in Sandymoor, which are at risk of flooding from Keckwick 
Brook, a main river.  This flood alleviation scheme is estimated to cost in the 
region of £1.5m, and is included within the Weaver Gowy CFMP action plan.  We 
understand that a cost-benefit analysis was to be carried out on the proposals 
before the scheme could be programmed.  One aspect of the scheme is to 
provide a silt trap to intercept solids within the Brook and improve flow, and 
Halton submitted an Early Action Bid for this specific improvement. The intention 
was to fund this improvement with proposed match funding from Halton’s Risk 
Management capital allocation and a £50,000 contribution from Homes and 
Communities Agency (HaCA).  Unfortunately this bid was not successful, 
although HaCA have provided their contribution, to ensure the cleansing and 
maintenance of the pedestrian subway above the Keckwick Brook culvert by 
Halton. 
 
Funding has been made available by the Environment Agency to jointly fund a 
post that will take on a co-ordinating and advising role across LLFAs within an 
area, working together with partner authorities on flood related matters.  Together 
with other Merseyside authorities, Halton will contribute £5000 toward the cost of 
this post. 
 

Page 17



Since 2004, an allocation of £100,000 per year has been made available from 
Halton’s Capital programme to fund a variety of flood risk management and 
drainage improvement works.  The works have ranged from minor improvements 
to existing drainage infrastructure, increasing capacity and preventing potential 
blockages, to extensive programmes of desilting to maintain flood resilience.  
The money has also been spent on flood protection to individual properties, 
through the provision of flood gates, sand and gel bags etc. 
 
10.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
  
4.1 There are policy implications for Halton contained within the Environment 
Agency’s CFMP and SMP2.  These documents establish flood risk management 
policies within river catchment areas and along coastlines.  They are designed to 
assist and inform stakeholders, including local Authorities, who can use the plans 
to develop more detailed policies, strategies and plans within their area.  Policies 
in relation to surface water management, SuDS schemes and reservoir 
management will be brought to the Board as they are developed. 
 
11.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Resource Implications 
 
The Act has significant resource implications for Halton as a Lead Local Flood 
Authority and SuDS Approval Body.  These are described within the body of the 
report together with the proposed funding arrangements outlined by Defra.  The 
transfer of private sewerage to the statutory water companies will also have 
resource implications for Halton, in reduced involvement in problems relating to 
private sewers.   
 
5.2 Sustainability  

Defra’s whole approach to flood and coastal erosion risk management is based 
upon sustainable strategies.  This is delivered in partnership with the 
Environment Agency, through the strategic, sustainable, flood risk management 
approaches including Catchment Flood Management Plans and the Shoreline 
Management Plans and Surface Water Management described above.  The 
measures in the Flood and Water Management Act for the adoption of 
Sustainable Drainage Systems for all new developments and the removal of the 
automatic right to connect to public sewers demonstrates the commitment to 
sustainable solutions. 

5.3 Best Value 
 

Expenditure on preventing floods and minimising the impact of flooding and 
coastal erosion can be highly beneficial, compared with the cost of responding to 
incidents and repairing and reinstating damage.  It has been estimated that the 
benefits of improved defences to control and manage flood risk, outweighs the 
cost of such works by a factor of 8 to 1.  A cost – benefit approach to all flood risk 

Page 18



management work by Local Authorities is positively encouraged to ensure that 
the cost of plans and investments are justified.   
 
5.4 Legal Implications 
 
The Act places many new statutory duties on Halton as a LLFA and SAB are 
briefly outlined in the body of the report above.  These are in addition to existing 
powers and duties under (inter-alia) the Land Drainage Act, the Public Health Act 
and Reservoirs Act. 
 
12.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
The management of flood risk will have a beneficial effect on both the 
sustainability of existing development and the planning and delivery of new 
developments in those areas with potential to suffer flooding.  These include 
parts of southern Widnes where the expansion of industrial and commercial 
development continues apace, and areas of housing and commercial growth in 
east Runcorn.  SuDS schemes have the potential to provide new, high quality 
open spaces within the urban environment.    
 
13.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 The report summarises the impact of new legislation and the effect that 
the various plans, to manage flood risk in the area, will have on Halton.  The new 
duties of LLFA and SAB will bring with them challenges and risks for the Council, 
but it is too early to scope and define these in any detail.  It is proposed that the 
Executive Board be requested to consider a report on the financial and resource 
implications of the Act, which will include a risk analysis of these specific aspects.  
 
14.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 There are no Equality and Diversity Issues associated with the report. 

 
15.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

Document 
 
Catchment Flood 
Management Plan – 
Mersey Estuary 
 
 
Catchment Flood 
Management Plan – 
Weaver Gowy 
 
Shoreline Management 
Plan – North West 

Place of Inspection 
 
Highways Transportation 
and Logistics Department, 
Rutland House, Runcorn 
 
 
Ditto 
 
 
 
Ditto 
 

Contact Officer 
 
D. Cunliffe 
 
 
 
 
D.Cunliffe 
 
 
 
D.Cunliffe 
 

Page 19



 

 

 

 

 

 

England and North Wales 
Coastal Group Sub Cell 
11A 
 
Defra Early Action 
Programme Bid – Flood 
Risk Management.  
Development of a SWMP 
for Widnes 
 

 
 
 
 
Ditto 

 
 
 
 
D.Cunliffe 

Page 20



Appendix 2 
 
Defra’s Results 
 
Option 1 – Funding distributed based purely on the geographical 
assessment of flood risk.  A percentage figure for each LLFA is determined 
that represents its share of property at risk nationally and therefore its share of 
funding.  Assuming that £36 million per annum is available for Area Based Grant, 
the graph below illustrates the distribution of funding to the 149 LLFAs. 
 
 

 

 
 

Overall distribution curve based on the 
geographical assessment of flood risk.  
Funding allocation increases with 
corresponding increase in risk.  
The y-axis indicates the amount of 
funding an LLFA would receive, with 
each LLFA ranked in order of funding 
level on the x-axis 

Distribution across LLFAs 

 

£ 000s 

 
Option1 Graph 

 
The distribution curve ranges from a maximum grant allocation of  
£1,160,800 (representing a 3.22% share of property at risk in Lincolnshire) to a 
minimum of £19,900 (representing a 0.3% share of property at risk in Rutland). If 
funding were to be distributed in this way, Halton would be allocated £49,100 
(representing a 0.7% share of properties) and 140th in the list of LLFAs.   
 
The Case for a ‘Funding Floor’ to set a minimum Level of Grant 
 
Defra acknowledge that all LLFAs will be expected to undertake certain actions 
to meet the requirements of the Act.  These may not correspond perfectly to the 
level of risk although more work would be required where risk is higher than in 
areas where it is less.  This suggests that a funding ‘floor’ may need to be set. 
 

Page 21



Defra has also considered the value at which a floor might be set to determine 
the minimum amount of grant.  It should be noted that the introduction of a ‘floor’ 
has the effect of ‘flattening’ the distribution curve as more LLFAs would receive 
the minimum amount. Defra have commissioned work to review the costs of the 
leadership role and to look at the level and costs of staff resources that might be 
required to deliver the duties under the Act.  Their findings suggest that a 
Chartered Engineer would cost around £70,000 a year, and a Technician around 
£50,000 a year including on-costs and overheads.  Defra consider that it is 
reasonable to assume that one or two people will be needed in addition to 
existing teams to carry out the new functions under the Act, even where risk is 
relatively low.  Their paper presents the options of setting a funding floor at 
£110,000 (equivalent to 1.5 Chartered Engineer FTEs or 2 Technician FTEs). 
 
If a funding floor is introduced as suggested, of the assumed £36 million, £16.39 
million would be evenly distributed across all 149 LLFAs.  Defra present two 
further options for the distribution of the remainder of the funding as described 
below.  
 
Option 2a – ‘Top-up Floor’ 
 
Here, after each authority is provided with the flat rate of funding as a floor, the 
remaining funding is distributed (in addition to the floor already provided) on the 
basis of the assessment of geographical information on flood risk.  This option 
continues to provide each LLFA with a level of funding according to the level of 
risk. 

 

 

 

Distribution across LLFAs 

It is possible to provide all LLFAs a 
minimum amount of funding to cover 
new burdens identified in Impact 
Assessments and New Burden 
Assessment. The remaining funding is 
distributed according to the 
geographical assessment of flood risk 
which counts of the number of 
properties at risk of flooding in each 
LLFA. In this scenario, no LLFA 
receives less than 1½ FTE. 

 

£ 

 
Option 2a Graph 

 
Under this option the Grant allocations range from £742,300 to £120,900.  
Halton’s maximum grant would be £136,700. 
 
Option 2b – ‘Adjusted Floor’ 
 
This option distributes the funding according to flood risk – as with option 1, but 
for those 55 authorities (including Halton) that fall below the suggested ‘floor’ of 
£110,000, the grant is adjusted to that minimum level.  The balance of funding 
(£29.95m) is distributed to the remaining authorities giving a maximum grant of 

Page 22



£1,060,000.  In this case Halton would receive only the funding floor amount and 
not an additional amount to cover risk to properties. 

 

 

 

Distribution across LLFAs  

Here, as the alternative, distribution 
could be based on the geographical 
assessment of flood risk with any local 
authority below the threshold being 
lifted to the threshold. LLFAs receiving 
more than the threshold would receive 
less to compensate for the cost of the 
uplift. 

£ 

     Option 2b Graph 
 

As stated in paragraph 3.2, funding illustrations have been provided for all three 
options based upon a phased implementation of the Act over three years – 60% 
in year 1 (£26.1M), 80% in year 2  (£28.8M) and 100% in year 3 and thereon 
£36M).  This is shown in the graph below. 
 
 

 

 

Highest: £742.3k 
Lowest: £120.9k 
Mean: £242k 
Median: £200k 
 
Highest: £510.1k 
Lowest: £116.9k 
Mean: £193k 
Median: £167k 
 
Highest: £278k 
Lowest: £112.9k 
Mean: £145k 
Median: £134k 

 

The effect of increasing the amount of 
funding across three years (assuming that 
the Act has a phased  Implementation). 

 

„Year 2‟ / 80% / £28.8m 

 

„Year 3‟ / 100% / £36.0m 

 

„Year 1‟ / 60% / £21.6m 

 

 
Phased Implementation Graph

Page 23



        
      Appendix 3 

   
Defra Proforma for Responses (Extract) 
 
Questions: 
 
Question 1.  Do you have a preference on how funding for Lead Local 
Flood Authorities is provided? 
 
Please answer using the appropriate ‘tick box’ below. 
 
I Prefer Formula 

Grant 
 
 
 

I Prefer Area 
Based Grant 

I Prefer Other 
Forms of Funding 

I’m Neutral 

 
Area based Grant will provide the clearest, most transparent way of providing 
funding for LLFAs against the measured criteria.  We would be able to take 
advantage of the flexibility of the ‘non-ring-fenced’ grant whilst enabling us to 
prioritise resources and get maximum vfm in delivering the new leadership role.  
However, it is important that as the funding of the new burdens is reviewed and 
adjusted (for instance, in line with improvements to the evidence base data), that 
the Grant continues to be maintained at a sustainable level so that we can 
adequately plan our medium to long term resource requirements. 
 
Commentary: 
 
Area Based Grant is preferred as it enables us to see how much has been 
allocated to fulfill the new LLFA duties whilst retaining flexibility in how and where 
the grant is spent. 
 
Question 2.  Do you agree that Government distribute funding for Lead 
Local Flood Authorities on the basis of geographical data such as flood 
maps and surface water vulnerability maps? 
 
Please answer using the appropriate ‘tick box’ below. 
 

I Strongly 
Disagree 

I Disagree I’m Neutral I Agree I Strongly 
Agree 

 
 
 

 
It is more realistic to distribute funding according to need based upon existing 
flood risk mapping data.  However, as the collection and analysis of data 

Page 24



improves and information becomes more accurate, it will be important to avoid 
any wide fluctuations (either way) in the level of grant awarded. 
 
 
 
Commentary: 
 
It is agreed that the level of grant should reflect the risk of flooding in an area, 
rather than it being related to historic expenditure on flood risk management.  
The available geographic based information on flooding and surface water 
vulnerability will gradually become more refined and accurate as a result of the 
plans and strategies required under the Act, and in accordance with the 
requirements of the Flood Risk Regulations.  Again, as the level of risk in an area 
becomes better defined it will be important that the level of funding reflects that 
risk, but wide fluctuations in the level of grant over a period must be avoided. 
 
Question 3.  Do you agree that a minimum amount of funding should be set 
(as a floor) that any one authority will receive? 
 
Please answer using the appropriate ‘tick box’ below. 
 

I Strongly 
Disagree 

 
 
 

I Disagree I’m Neutral I Agree I strongly 
Agree 

 
As stated in the accompanying paper, all LLFAs will be required to undertake 
certain actions to meet the requirements of the Act.  Therefore, we agree that a 
minimum amount of funding should be set for each authority. 
 
Commentary: 
 
If the level of grant was based simply on the criteria used – the %age share 
nationally, of properties at risk, then Halton would not receive sufficient funding to 
employ even one additional member of staff to carry out the functions. 
 
Question 4.  If you agreed at question 2, what would you consider should 
be the minimum amount of funding an authority receives? 
 
The value of the floor indicated in the accompanying paper would appear 
reasonable at £110,000.  It should be noted that Authorities may already employ 
staff to undertake existing roles within Land Drainage and Flood Risk 
Management and of course also undertake a significant degree of management 
and administrative functions in connection with this.  Undertaking the new duties 
will add not only to the base workload of LLFAs (which may be resourced 
through additional staff) but also to the general management role across the 
relevant Departments.  It will be important to employ staff with the correct skills, 

Page 25



knowledge and experience as well as the seniority/authority to act and deliver the 
leadership role.  Given the acknowledged skills shortage in this area, these 
people are likely to be in short supply and may command a premium salary.  In 
addition, the need to re-skill/re-train staff involved in flood risk management will 
add to the overhead costs in terms of staff development and training and future 
funding must recognise this.  At the upper end of the distribution curve, the 
indicative level of funding equates to in excess of 10 FTE’s (for ten LLFAs).  It is 
questionable whether this level of resource is justified.  The paper touches upon 
the effect of introducing a ‘funding ceiling’ (at £700,000) and the introduction of a 
‘floor’ (at £110,000) which flattens the distribution curve, effectively limiting these 
higher-end allocations. 
 
Question 5.  If you answered question 3 and 4, please explain any evidence 
you may have to support your answer? 
 
Current activity in the area of Flood Risk and Surface Water Management 
together with initial consideration of LLFA duties already competes for the time of 
two senior engineers, a Lead Officer and Divisional Manager.  This is in addition 
to commissioning Consulting Engineers for surface water modelling and input 
from the Council’s Planning Division and Risk Management Division to Flood 
Risk Strategies and local resilience.  One of the senior engineers is currently 
studying for an MSc in Flood Risk Management and others have attended 
workshops/seminar etc.  In relation to the Act and the new duties for LLFAs.  Any 
additional duties will place greater demands on staff resources and require 
further training and development in these specialist areas. 
 
Question 6.  Do you agree that the assumptions about staff costs are 
correct? 
 
Please answer using the appropriate ‘tick box’ below. 
 

I Strongly 
Disagree 

I Disagree I’m Neutral I Agree I Strongly 
Agree 

 
 
 

 
Salary costs for both Chartered Engineer and Technician appear a little high in 
comparison with rates applied across the Local Government sector.  However, as 
stated in the responses to Q4, due to skills shortages in this area staff posts in 
Flood Risk Management may attract a premium salary.  The need for 
experienced and senior staff to undertake the roles would also require posts to 
be pitched at the higher ‘Lead’ or ‘Principal’ officer grades.  The staff costs 
indicated are commensurate with what we pay for Consulting Engineering staff to 
work with us on projects.  The on-cost for National insurance is realistic at an 
average of 11% however Superannuation on-costs are lower than what we allow 
(18%) Overheads appear on the low side at 20% (22.5% typically).  Overall we 
agree with the assumptions about staff costs. 

Page 26



 
Commentary: 
 
Defra commissioned a report from Warwick Business School and Atkins on the 
costs associated with implementing duties under the Act.  The report drew on 
survey data of salaries from the Institution of Civil Engineers and the LGA to 
derive typical staff costs for engineering staff including overheads.  Whilst the 
salary costs indicated appear high in comparison with Halton’s staff costs, some 
of the on-costs are slightly low.   The figures illustrated correlate closer to 
Consulting Engineer charges currently used.  As stated in the response to 
question 4, it will be important to secure staff with the necessary knowledge and 
seniority and it is recognized that there is currently a ‘skills shortage’ in the area 
of flood risk management.  In the light of these comments, the illustrated staff 
costs appear to be a correct assumption. 
 
Question 7.  Which of the options presented in the paper do you prefer? 
 
Please answer using the appropriate ‘tick box’ below. 
 
I prefer option 1 

 
 
 

I prefer Option 
2(a) 

I Prefer Option 
2(b) 

I do not agree 
with any of the 

options 
 

 
This option recognises the fact that all LLFAs must undertake certain actions to 
meet the requirements of the Act and distributes the funding according to 
recognised need and in accordance with the criteria and evidence base.  Option 
2b does not take account of the differential in Relative Score for the 40% of 
LLFAs in the bottom part of the table Annex A i.e. between 0.3% and 0.1%.  This 
must be acknowledged in the funding distribution. 
 
Commentary: 
 
This is the real crux of the consultation.  All of the options presented, use the 
same evidential data and are based upon the number of properties at risk of 
flooding.   However, due to the suggestion that a ‘funding floor’ might be 
introduced each option results in a different distribution profile of the funding 
available to authorities through Area Based Grant.  As all LLFAs must undertake 
certain actions it is fair that all receive sufficient grant to carry out the duties and 
functions under the Act.  Therefore, we support the introduction of a ‘funding 
floor’.  As the proposed funding is based on an assessment of flood risk, it is also 
reasonable to fund according to the level of risk to each authority.  This method 
of distribution also has the effect of ‘damping’ grant at the upper end of the curve 
and therefore Option 2a – the ‘Top-up floor’ represents the fairest way for 
distributing proposed funding according to need.   
 

Page 27



 
 
 
 
Question 8.  Do you agree with the weightings suggested in the paper 
(repeated below)? 
 

I Strongly 
Disagree 

I Disagree I’m Neutral I Agree I Strongly 
Agree 

 
 
 

 
It is correct to exclude Flood Zone 1 and areas less vulnerable to Surface Water 
Flooding from the weighting.  Without the benefit of experience in relation to the 
actual ratio between SWM and Flooding & Coastal Erosion, and given the results 
of the ‘sensitivity test’ included in the paper, Defra’s initial assessment of a 70:30 
split would appear acceptable. 
 
Commentary: 
 
Asks about the weightings used in the assessment of flood risk and the ratio of 
apportionment of grant according to surface water or sea & river flooding.  In the 
absence of any real or actual evidence of where the main demand on resources 
and staff time will be, the weighting and ratio appears reasonable.  Defra have 
also carried out some ‘sensitivity’ testing of their funding models which 
demonstrates that any variance either way has only a marginal impact on funding 
distribution, particularly at the lower end of the curve. 
 
Question 9.  Are there any other comments or suggestions that you would 
like to make? 
 
As the demands of the new burdens are still to be fully realised and because this 
is a specialist area of work requiring specific skills that are currently in short 
supply and will need significant development, it is essential that the proposed 
funding package is preserved through the Spending Review. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 28



REPORT TO: 
 

Executive Board Sub Committee 

DATE: 
 

23 September 2010  

REPORTING OFFICER: 
 

Strategic Director, Adults & Community 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Additional IDVA Capacity for Halton Domestic 
Abuse Service 
 

WARD(S) 
 

Borough Wide 

 
1.0 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1  To seek agreement to enter into a temporary contract with Halton 
and District Women’s Aid Association for provision of temporary 
additional Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That: 
 

  
1. the Strategic Director, Adults and Community be 

authorised to enter into a contract with Halton and 
District Women’s Aid in respect of temporary delivery of 
additional IDVA capacity to adults who are victims of 
domestic abuse in the sum of £16,000 between 
September 2010 and April 2011; and   

 
2. on this occasion, in the light of exceptional 

circumstances, due to the need to retain the service 
delivery gains made by the combining of three existing 
contracts and the time and spend conditions of the Home 
Office grant, Standing Orders 4.1 relating to Tendering 
for Contracts be waived pursuant to Standing Order 1.6  

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
3.1 The Partnership was notified at the beginning of August 2010 that it 

had been successful in its bid for grant funding towards the provision 
of additional Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy (IDVA) 
capacity.   
 

3.2 The area was awarded £16,000 of the requested £20,000 from its 
March 2010 bid.  This revised grant value offers sufficient funding for 
a temporary increase in IDVA capacity.  The life span of the post will 
depend on whether a full time or part time post is recruited but it is 
envisaged that these funds would offer additional capacity for a 
minimum of six months. 
 

3.3 This financial input has the potential to offer much needed additional 

Agenda Item 4aPage 29



capacity to the existing service in the short term.  According to 
Coordinated Action Against Domestic Abuse (CAADA), the leading 
national charity in this field, their IDVA capacity formula indicates 
that Halton requires 2.5 full time IDVAs.  Currently, the area has one 
and there is not funding to provide any additional capacity.  Thus, 
this grant allows us to temporarily move closer to the areas required 
provision and offer the current IDVA some much needed additional 
support. 
 

3.4 Alongside the additional capacity, this post will be able to undertake 
the additional duties of developing working relationships with 
minority and excluded groups within the community that may be 
experiencing barriers to engaging with the service.  For example, a 
recent data review indicated that the area should be having greater 
levels of referrals for lesbian, gay, bisexual and trans gender 
individuals.  Similarly, our current black and ethnic minority 
representation is below CAADA expectations.  This post would 
undertake IDVA duties alongside promoting the services available to 
such groups to develop the local networks and identify and remove 
barriers to access. 
 

3.5 At the time of going to tender for the new Halton Domestic Abuse 
Service in 2009 this grant was not available so could not be offered 
as part of the tender package.  Subsequently, the contract has now 
commenced and the area has additional funds to add to the contract 
as a temporary addition to value.   
 

3.6 Under current regulations this additional capacity needs to be put 
out to tender.  This process takes approximately 3 months for 
contract values under £50,000 which would leave the area with less 
than three months to spend the allocated grant within Government 
Office North West grant conditions. 
 

3.7 If current tender requirements are waived the current service could 
advertise and recruit a temporary post within potentially a 4 week 
period.  Thus, ensuring we are able to utilise the funds available 
within the deadline of 31st march 2011. 
 

3.8 Inclusion of this post within the current service also offers best 
utilisation of the additional capacity as they will be situated alongside 
an already embedded service which can ensure the post is 
supported by experienced specialist staff to respond to need 
immediately.  Likewise, working alongside the existing IDVA will 
ensure that our current IDVA is able to ensure provision is in line 
with CAADA guidelines.  It is a reality that for such a short post we 
will not be able to train this individual formally for the role. 
 

4.0 BUSINESS CASE FOR WAIVERING TENDERING SO’S 
 

4.1 VALUE FOR MONEY AND COMPETITION 

Page 30



 
Whilst the post will not have been market tested for value for money 
it is likely that this will achieve the best value for a one off, small 
financial input for a number of reasons.  Firstly, the new Halton 
Domestic Abuse Service has brought a number of services together 
to ensure cost savings are made via back office and management 
costs as opposed to posts.  Thus, inclusion of this temporary post 
into the existing structure should ensure these savings are 
maintained across this post.  If the post is allocated to another 
provider there will likely be management costs that reduce the actual 
amount of capacity offered.  Secondly, the current service provider 
as of November 2009, the contract awarding date, offered the most 
competitive and cost effective option for provision of an IDVA, 
floating support and Sanctuary Scheme service.  There is currently 
no evidence to suggest that this is no longer the case.  
 

4.2 TRANSPARENCY 
 
These proposals are open to scrutiny via internal and external audit 
and via the Freedom of Information Act. 
 
The contract would be awarded based on grant approval and roles 
endorsed by central government. 
 

4.3 PROPERTY AND SECURITY 
 
The usual integrity clauses will be built into the contract document 
and only staff with a need to know will have information about the 
contract. 
 
The contract, if approved, will fully comply with HBC’s Standing 
Orders. 
 

4.4 ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
This remains with the Operational Director, Prevention and 
Commissioning, in conjunction with the relevant portfolio holder. 
 
All matters will be scrutinised by internal/external audit and the 
relevant Policy and Performance Board. 
 

4.5 POSITION OF THE CONTRACT UNDER THE PUBLIC 
CONTRACTS REGULATIONS 2006 
 
The contract is fully compliant, and subject to fundamental 
transparency and non-distortion of competition requirements. 
 

5.0 
 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 This proposal will support the Safer Halton priority through provision 

Page 31



of additional IDVA capacity for a temporary period.  This will allow 
additional support capacity to victims of Domestic Abuse and assist 
the area to achieve its target to reduce repeat incidents of domestic 
abuse.   
 

5.2 The role will also undertake additional duties to engage the more 
socially excluded members of our communities who may be 
experiencing barriers to accessing such services, such as black and 
minority ethnic groups or lesbian, gay, bisexual and trans gendered 
individuals.  This will be a focus of the forthcoming revised Domestic 
Abuse and Sexual Violence strategy and following Violence Against 
Women and Girls Strategy. 
 

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 There are currently limited financial implications for this proposal as 
the contract value will be met through an already identified Home 
Office Grant of £16,000. 
 

6.2 This funding is a one off grant that may not be available for bid in 
2011 and is unlikely to be a successfully bid for in future due to this 
years success.  It is also expected that government grants will be a 
rarity in the future.  Therefore, the opportunity for long term service 
expansion does not exist. 
 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 

7.1 Children & Young People in Halton  
 
This proposal helps to support robust safeguarding children 
arrangements through identification of children living within 
domestically abuse environments and safety plans implemented to 
enable parents to provide a safer environment. 

 
7.2 Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton 

 
None identified. 
 

7.3 A Healthy Halton  
 
This proposal supports the delivery of services that address health 
inequalities through supporting those socially excluded to access 
support to improve their general health and well being. 
 

7.4 A Safer Halton  
 
The additional IDVA capacity should ensure better provision of 
support services to enable victims of domestic abuse to reduce risk 
and improve their safety. 
 

Page 32



7.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
None identified. 
 

7.6 The proposed post is part of the support services within Halton that 
contribute to the areas selected National indicators - PSA 23 
‘Making communities Safer’ priority action No. 1, which is to ‘Reduce 
the most serious violence, including tackling serious sexual offences 
and domestic violence.’  This includes the following National 
Indicators: 
 
NI32: Repeat incidents of domestic violence 
NI34: Domestic violence murders 
Thus, the additional capacity will assist towards positive 
performance against these targets. 
 

8.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

8.1 Due to the time constraints on spend of the allocated grant (March 
2011) failure to approve the request could lead to reduced utilisation 
or loss of the allocated finances. 
 

9.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

9.1 This temporary post will have the specific function of promoting a 
more diverse range of service users.  Thus, this proposal will 
support the areas aims to address equality and diversity issues. 
 

9.2 Agencies providing the service are expected to comply with the 
Council policies relating to Ethnicity and Cultural Diversity as well as 
promoting inclusion. 
 

10.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

 None Identified 
 

 

Page 33



 
REPORT TO:   Executive Board Sub Committee 
 
DATE:    23 September 2010   
 
REPORTING OFFICER:  Strategic Director – Resources 
 
TITLE:    ICT Hardware and Software Maintenance  

and Development Capital Programme 
2010/2011 

 
WARDS:    Borough Wide 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide an update to Members of the Board on progress on the ICT 

Capital Programme. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDED:  That the report be noted and that a further 

progress report be brought to the Board in 6 months’ time. 
 
3.0 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The attached appendix, documents the future spend profile for the ICT 

Hardware and Software Maintenance and Development Capital 
programme for the financial year 2010/2011. 

 
3.2 The appendix details the technical requirement, the associated capital 

investment for each requirement, the revenue implication and related 
risk analysis. 

 
4.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
4.1 The strategy plan for ICT Services includes the following key priorities: 
 

• Ensures that ICT across the Council is supported in the most 
appropriate and efficient way. 

• Supports the Council in maximising efficiency through the best use 
of ICT. 

• Maximises the use of existing ICT resources. 

• Ensures that the ICT Infrastructure is sustainable. 
 
4.2 Utilisation of the annual capital allocation is essential to maintain and 

enhance the Council’s ICT capabilities. 

Agenda Item 5aPage 34



 
5.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 The investments outlined within this report can be met from existing 

resources. 
 
7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
7.1  Children and Young People in Halton 
 
  See 7.6 
 
7.2  Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 
 See 7.6 
 
7.3  A Healthy Halton 
 
 See 7.6 
 
7.4  A Safer Halton 
 
 See 7.6 
 
7.5  Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
7.6  All applications associated with the management and delivery of the 

key services and priorities are underpinned by the use of technology, 
the authority’s technology infrastructure supports service delivery and 
the achievement of Council priorities. 

 
8.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
8.1 The consequences associated with delays in maintenance and 

replacement could impose considerable issues upon the individual 
directorates and overarching authority wide objectives through the loss 
of systems or the failure of the current support infrastructure. 

 
8.2 Disaster recovery arrangements are now in place through the 

reciprocal partnership arrangements with Redcar and Cleveland 
Borough Council; ongoing efforts make this a clear focus for the 
department into the future. 

Page 35



 
8.3 The investment outlined in this report will assist the Council in meeting 

its Code of Connection obligations.  The Council was deemed 
compliant with Level 4.1 of the Code of Connection on 14 June 2010.  

 
9.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
9.1  All applications associated with the management and delivery of the 

key services and priorities are underpinned by the use of technology, 
the authorities’ technology infrastructure supports such services and 
key priorities. 

 
10.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
10.1 www.govconnect.gov.uk. 
 
 The public interest in not disclosing is that the report will involve 

disclosure of information relating to the specific technical nature of the 
configuration of the technical infrastructure. As such this would pose a 
security threat and would impact upon the overall integrity of this asset 
and the data held within. 

 
11.3 Conclusion 
 
 The public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 

interest in disclosing the information. 
 

Page 36



ICT & Support Services 2010 

ICT Hardware & Software Maintenance and Development Capital Programme 2010/2011 Page 1 

 

REPORT:    EXECUTIVE BOARD  

 

Capital 
Requirement 

Capital Cost Additional 
Revenue 
Cost 

Reason Why  Do Nothing Outcome Code of 
Connection 
Requirement 

 
PC Device Control 
(Covering 2000+ PC 
Devices) 

 
£25’000 

 
£6’000 
 
Maintenance 
Contract 

To manage and enable full PC 
audit, monitoring, and access 
control to all ports and 
removable media devices 
such as USB, Bluetooth, CD, 
and Wireless. 
Helping to guard against data 
loss in order to avoid possible 
Information Security Office 
fines, secure personal 
(sensitive) data of citizens. 

We would not be able to 
manage the vast quantity of 
devices remotely removing 
any efficiency in terms of 
resource management and 
additional costs associated 
with staffing in order to audit 
and manage this requirement 
to remove all removable 
media. Causing an 
unmanageable overhead and 
drain on resource. This 
software will remove the 
need to employ additional 
agency staff to complete and 
manage the task. 

Yes  

 
Microsoft Premier 
Agreement 

 
£50’000 

 
None 

The agreement enables the 
department to call down up to 
a maximum of 80 days on site 
engineering support from 
Microsoft. And link into an 
engineering helpdesk for 
support and training purposes 
to support the major Microsoft 
sourced systems such as 
email and remote 
management services 
(SCCM) 

It would be possible to not 
complete this agreement but 
the time this resource saves 
the authority in terms of 
deployment and 
maintenance tasks for the 
more complex areas involved 
in the set up of the major 
support applications there 
would be no efficiency in not 
using this service. Again we 
would need to employ 

Yes 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

7



ICT & Support Services 2010 

ICT Hardware & Software Maintenance and Development Capital Programme 2010/2011 Page 2 

 

additional resource to a value 
way in excess of this figure. 

 
Data Centre 
Upgrade Extension 

 
£100’000 

 
None 

The extension of the existing 
corporate data centre based 
within the 1st floor Municipal 
Building  

The centre is quickly running 
out of space and is extending 
the capacity of the maximum 
allowable air-conditioning 
capability for the size of the 
facility. Unfortunately there is 
no other option but to extend 
the facility by creating a 
similar but separate space 
adjacent to the existing 
facility to now house the 
constantly increasing data 
storage requirements 
allowing the application 
servers to be retained within 
the current facility. 

No 

 
Server 
Uninterruptable 
Power Supply (UPS) 
Replacement 

 
£40’000 

 
None 

“10” emergency power 
supplies that sit independently 
between the actual buildings 
power supply and the high 
value server racks to protect 
this equipment from power 
surges and spikes. 
 
Essentially an insurance 
policy that is constantly 
brought into play as the 
buildings power supply 
although heavily regulated can 
surge and damage the 
equipment on the other end. 
Again in the event of power 
failure and the generator 

Stops the risk of the servers 
becoming unavailable during 
power failure or the more 
regular power surge and 
spikes that such sensitive 
equipment is so prone to be 
permanently damaged by.  
 
The current equipment is 5 
years old and has to be 
replaced as the individual 
cost associated with a failure 
in this area again is 
considerably higher than the 
equipment required.  
 
A £4’000 device protects 

Yes and also 
required for 
insurance 
purposes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 3

8



ICT & Support Services 2010 

ICT Hardware & Software Maintenance and Development Capital Programme 2010/2011 Page 3 

 

powering up these units are 
essential to save the 
equipment, as the power 
supply will blow before the 
equipment  

potentially £200’000 worth of 
equipment.  

 
 

 
Microsoft Data 
Centre Licenses 

 
£35’000 

 
None 

This license allows an 
unlimited number of any 
Microsoft server operating 
systems to be installed onto a 
Virtual Machine platform. 
 
VM ware allows multiple 
server builds to be placed on 
a single server reducing the 
cost of new equipment, power 
requirements and space. 
Therefore realising greater 
revenue savings and reducing 
capital replacement costs, 
reducing project costs and 
allowing greater levels of 
development and testing 
opportunities.  
 
Currently we operate 10 VM 
servers allowing systems to 
be spread across servers for 
greater resilience – the 
Redcar project will also use 
this technology to allow 
systems to be replicated 160 
miles away. 

We would break the 
Microsoft licensing 
compliance and systems 
would be illegally operated - 
potentially the authority could 
be fined quite heavily. 
 
Microsoft aside this solution 
saves the authority 10’s of 
thousands of pounds in 
capital and revenue funding. 
As a new server can be built 
within this environment within 
hours rather than days. 
 
A new server that can be 
based within this 
environment does not require 
new hardware or additional 
MS licensing – the average 
cost of a basic standalone 
server with a license is 
approximately £10’000 +. 
 
We currently operate just 
over 200 servers within this 
environment. 
 
We also operate 110 
standalone servers as well 

No 

P
a
g
e
 3

9



ICT & Support Services 2010 

ICT Hardware & Software Maintenance and Development Capital Programme 2010/2011 Page 4 

 

for technical reasons and 
age that cannot operate as 
yet within this environment. 

 
Centralised Data 
Storage NAS 

 
£30’000 

 
£6’000 (20%) 
 
Maintenance 
contract. 

Create a further 2 central 
storage locations at Runcorn 
Town Hall and Grosvenor, to 
compliment the Municipal 
central NAS. This 3 NAS 
architecture will allow users to 
access data from any of the 3 
locations taking the strain off 
the network especially for 
those users that may hot desk 
in the future. 

For security, ease of use and 
central control the use of 
centrally stored data will 
solve many of the issues 
users face. Removing the 
need for backup, data is 
accessible from any location, 
and provides the opportunity 
for improved data 
management and document 
management solutions into 
the future. This will also allow 
devices to be utilised for 
longer as the data storage 
and processing will not be 
affected by the desktop 
devices capabilities. 

Yes an 
essential for 
CoCo 
compliance 
as the real 
need to 
manage and 
control data is 
high on the 
Caldecott and 
CoCo 
agenda. 

 
Cisco Core Network 
Switch 
Replacement 

 
£45’000 

 
None 

This replaces the current 
CISCO Core Switch based at 
Grosvenor/Rutland with the 
latest CISCO 4510 Enterprise 
Chassis.  

This new device will supply 
the essential functionality 
required for NAC, VOIP and 
Unified Communications. 
 
Providing the different 
network priorities to different 
applications, users and data 
flows to guaranteed levels of 
performance. Known as 
Quality of Service (QOS)– 
similar to traffic management 
on a motorway in that this 
creates lane management 
and dedicated routes for the 

Yes as this 
will allow 
NAC Network 
Access 
control, 
allowing 
greater levels 
of intrusion 
detection 
mechanisms 
to identify 
potential 
hacking 
attacks. 

P
a

g
e
 4

0



ICT & Support Services 2010 

ICT Hardware & Software Maintenance and Development Capital Programme 2010/2011 Page 5 

 

specific types of traffic to flow 
through – so large trucks on 
the inside lane etc. 
Maintaining speed and 
flexibility. With the advent of 
data centralisation, VOIP and 
the greater requirement 
placed on the network speed 
issues will again become an 
issue. 

 
CISCO Edge 
Network Switch 
Replacement 

 
£50’000 

 
None 

The replacement of “30” 
CISCO 2950/2960 Edge 
switch’s based throughout the 
authority with CISCO 3560 
power over Ethernet switch’s 

This will not only support 
QOS as described above but 
will enable the NAC and 
VOIP projects. VOIP or Voice 
over IP is in base terms the 
ability to use the current 
network as an internal 
telephone system, which will 
also allow greater 
functionality in terms of the 
wider telephone system 
replacement project. This will 
also standardise on CISCO 
switch gear throughout the 
authority. If we don’t do this 
we will have to replace the 
current phone system with 
analogue and this will incur a 
greater capital cost and 
continued revenue increases. 

Yes as 
above. 

 
Authority wide 
Telephony system 
replacement 

 
£400’000 
 
Pending Competitive 
Tender and 

 
Approximately 
15 – 20% of 
the purchase 
value. 

The authority currently runs a 
system based upon 20 year 
old technology that is now in 
urgent need of replacement 
with continued maintenance 

The costs associated with 
Analogue systems out way 
the costs associated with the 
new digital technologies. 
 

Yes  
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

1



ICT & Support Services 2010 

ICT Hardware & Software Maintenance and Development Capital Programme 2010/2011 Page 6 

 

approvals.  
Estimate: 
 
£60 – 80’000 

and considerable capital 
investment to replace old 
technology with yet again old 
technology.  
 
The proposal is to utilise the 
corporate network for Voice 
Over IP and link this modern 
solution to the external land 
and mobile voice networks for 
an external access allowing 
new and innovative solutions 
to be provide to field workers 
and those now working from 
home or flexibly. 

Analogue technologies are 
expensive to maintain and 
operate with extended 
revenue requirement in terms 
of call charges and lease 
charges for voice lines. 
 
Digital technology utilises 
what we already have in 
terms of the data network 
and the external internet and 
voice connections. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PC Replacement 

 
£140’000 

 
None 

Ongoing corporate 
programme for PC and Laptop 
devices – not screens etc. 

7 year old equipment, the 
need to upgrade from ageing 
operating systems, security. 

Yes 

 
Back-Up Hardware 
(Data Domain) 

 
£180’000 

 
None for the 
1st 3 years 
then £31’000 
per annum 

The data domain backup is a 
piece of hardware that stores 
the increasingly vast array of 
data we hold as an authority 
without duplication.  
 
This means that whenever a 
duplicate piece of data is 
being backed up such as an 
operating system or the same 
document then it only needs 
to backup the one instance. 
This starts to make backup 
considerably faster and 
efficient. 
 
Also the ICT teams will be 

Backup will need to flow over 
into working hours given the 
massive amount of data that 
we hold, making systems 
and data unavailable during 
this process. 
 
Data restore times will be 
slow and because the 
technology in use at the 
moment is tape based as its 
primary media. The authority 
will need to maintain multiple 
proprietary backup solutions, 
requiring greater levels of 
training and resource. The 
authority will have to 

No 

P
a

g
e
 4

2



ICT & Support Services 2010 

ICT Hardware & Software Maintenance and Development Capital Programme 2010/2011 Page 7 

 

reorganised around this 
offering greater flexibility as 
part of the current efficiency 
work stream. 

maintain greater levels of 
expensive storage media as 
everything will have to be 
backed up every night 
regardless of need.  
 
The current systems will cost 
more to replace, maintain 
and resource. 

 
Titus Email 
Classification 

 
£6’700 

 
£1’700 
Maintenance 

Automated Protective mark 
classification of secure 
(GCSx) email. 

An “Essential” requirement 
under CoCo 

Yes 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

3


	Agenda
	3a Defra Consultation on Distributing Funding for Local Flood Risk Management
	4a Additional IDVA Capacity for Halton Domestic Abuse Service
	5a ICT Hardware and Software Maintenance and Development Capital Programme 2011/2011
	ExecBSubSept10 ICTCapProg 10-11 Append.doc


